
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor
Monday, May 2, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held April 18, 2022
• Executive Session held April 18, 2022

8. Proclamations:
• Water Professionals Appreciation Day, May 2, 2022
• 53rd Annual Professional Municipal Clerks Week, May 1 – 7, 2022

BUSINESS 
9. Planning Commission Appointment, Post 2

10. Modification Request for Improvement to Winner’s Circle – Tabled from March 21, 2022
11. Special Event Alcohol Permit Request – Memorial Day Car Show, May 28, 2022

  EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED   
  ADJOURNMENT  

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, May 16, 2022 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held April 18, 2022 
• Executive Session held April 18, 2022 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD APRIL 18, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD APRIL 18, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, April 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Operation 
Manager Jacob Barr, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator Robin 
Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  City Manager Bolz announced the Farmer’s Market opening day is Saturday, 
April 30, 2022 and the first Food Truck Friday is May 6, 2022.   

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

6. PUBLIC INPUT:   
 

• Corey Gutherie, 3384 Elliott Family Parkway – He spoke as the engineer on behalf of agenda 
item #12 and wanted to highlight the concessions they’ve made regarding additional buffers, 
decreased total number of lots and increased open space. 

• Gail Smith, 378 Apple Ridge 1 – She also spoke on item #12 requesting the Council consider 
denying the rezoning and would like to see it remain as R1. 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a,b,c,d) made 
by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held March 21, 2022 
• Executive Session held March 21, 2022 

b. Approve 2022 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and Training 
c. Approve Annual Preventive Maintenance Contract for Lift Stations 
d. Approve Updated 2022 Lease for Dawsonville History Museum 

 
8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION: The Mayor and Council presented awards to Beth Tuttle for the March 

2022 Employee of the Month and Clay Moss as the Employee of the Second Quarter.  Additionally, 
Tracy Smith received a five-year service award, Blake Croft received a six-year service award and 
Trampas Hansard received a fourteen-year service award.  

 

9. PROCLAMATION: ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS DAY, APRIL 27, 2022:  Mayor Eason 
read the proclamation and thanked the staff for their commitment and hard work.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. ZA-C2200130:  City of Dawsonville and Shiloh and Shiloh, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment 
for TMP D02 005 and D02 006, Located at 41 and 68 Dan Roper Lane from PCS (Planned 
Conservation Subdivision) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on March 14, 2022, and City Council on March 21, 2022.  City Council for a decision on 
April 18, 2022. 
 

Motion to approve rezoning request as presented made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  
Councilmember French stated for the public that nothing is being built as a result of the zoning 
amendment; Planning Director Picklesimer confirmed.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

11. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) 
tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone 
from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning 
of R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, April 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 4 
 

2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021 – Tabled 
from March 21, 2022 
 

Mayor Eason stated it has been recommended that this item be tabled indefinitely.  Attorney Tallant 
further explained several issues still remain unresolved concerning this request and the item has 
been tabled multiple times during the effort to resolve the issues.  Laying the item on the table 
indefinitely will allow time to settle the matter and then at a future meeting the City Council will make 
a motion to put the item back on an agenda once a clear decision can be made.  
 

Motion to lay the item on the table indefinitely made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

12. ZA-C2200119:  SDH Atlanta, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 084 004 and 084 
005; Located at 1694 and 1768 Highway 9 South from R1 (Restricted Single-Family Residential 
District) to R3 (Single-Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on February 
14, 2022, and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022. – 
Tabled from March 21, 2022 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the zoning amendment request and asked the Council to consider 
the additional stipulations as outlined by the Planning Department.  Councilmember Phillips stated 
they have worked hard to try and find what is fair for all involved. 
 

Motion made by C. Phillips to approve the zoning amendment request with the following stipulations: 
 

• Provide a 50-foot undisturbed stream buffer and 25-foot impervious setback on each side of 
the existing streams. An exception is made for the installation of the required sanitary sewer 
lines and their associated easement to be allowed within the 25-foot impervious setback. 
 

• Install nature trail network system without land disturbance measures that will follow the 
existing topography in the open space areas and have connectivity to the Thunder Ridge 
development nature trails. 
 

• Development shall not exceed 220 units and a density of 1.82 units per acre. 
 

• Provide a no access easement adjoining the HWY 9S frontage boundary. 
 

• Applicant shall request a stream study in Shoal Creek Tributary Number 14 and 14.1 from the 
US Fish and Wildlife Service to determine the existence of the threatened Cherokee or Etowah 
Darter. If Darters exist in either tributary the applicant must request a formal consultation 
meeting with the US Fish and Wildlife Service and provide the City with FWS recommended 
protection action plan.   
 

• Provide a 75-foot undisturbed buffer and additional 25-foot planted buffer adjoining the South 
boundary line of Apple Ridge parcels from HWY 9S to TMP 087 003. In the event the 25-foot 
planted buffer area requires grading activity and or the existing vegetation is found not 
appropriate the buffer shall be supplemented with approved and additional plantings per City 
buffer requirements.  
  

• Applicant shall donate funds and be dedicated for future intersection improvements at 
Perimeter Road and HWY 9S.  Funds in the amount of $1,000.00 per unit shall be donated 
prior to each building permit approval.  Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credit if 
the City adopts said fees in the future. 
 

• Development must be constructed in multiple phases. 
 

• Minimum heated square footage of all homes shall be 1,500 sf. 
 

• Maximum of 20% of homes for the entire development to be less than 1,600 heated sf. 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, April 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 4 
 

• Maximum of 35% of homes for the entire development to be less than 1,800 heated sf. 
 

• Minimum of 45% of the homes for the entire development to be 2,000 heated sf or more. 
 

• Minimum of 20% of the homes for the entire development to be 2,200 heated sf or more. 
 

• All homes, at a minimum, shall have a brick or stone water table feature across the front and 
sides of the home       

      Second by W. Illg.  Vote carried three in favor (Phillips, Illg, Walden) with one opposed (French). 
 

13. LETTER OF COMMITMENT TO APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION:  Motion to approve 
the letter of commitment as presented and approve the $30,000 match to be funded by SPLOST VII 
made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

14. STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE AND EXPENSES AGREEMENT:  Attorney 
Tallant explained the agreement was developed for the consideration of the residents on Maple Hill 
Drive allowing the City to make a one-time repair to their storm water infrastructure and beginning 
immediately thereafter a maintenance and administrative fee would be assessed to the residents on 
Maple Hill Drive for future costs of storm water maintenance.  Those who do not enter into the 
agreement with the City will receive an invoice reflecting their portion and if not paid, a lien will be 
placed on their property for their portion.   

 

The following feedback was received on the agreement and can be incorporated into the agreement 
if requested.  After the initial storm water infrastructure repair, all persons who will sign the agreement 
to pay for future maintenance will not be assessed their pro-rata share for the cost of the initial 
cleanout; however, those who do not sign the agreement to pay for future maintenance will be 
invoiced for their pro-rata share for the cost of the initial cleanout.  The agreement is drafted to be 
recorded on the real property records and will bind on future property owners; therefore, following the 
land.    
 

Motion to approve the agreement incorporating the additional feedback outlined above made by J. 
Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried three in favor (Walden, Phillips, French) with one 
abstained (Illg).     

15. MAIN STREET PARK PAVILION RENTAL INCREASE:  Motion made by M. French to approve the 
pavilion rental increase for all day rentals as follows: 
 

• $75.00 for Dawson County residents 
• $100.00 for Non-Dawson County residents 

 

     Second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

16. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) GRANT FUNDS DESIGNATION: Motion to designate 
ARPA Grant Funds in the amount of $1.2M to the revenue standard allowance made by W. Illg; 
second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

17. IMPACT FEE STUDY DISCUSSION:  Mayor Eason asked the City Council to consider an impact fee 
study stating an RFP would need to be developed for the service.  Councilmember French stated he 
supports the study and feels it is worthy of consideration .  Councilmember Phillips is not currently in 
favor of implementing impact fees as of now but would support a study.  Councilmembers Illg and 
Walden would also be interested in the study.  Mayor Eason further stated the Council could consider 
an IGA with the County to use a portion of the fees to support things like public safety.   
 

Motion to approve staff to move forward with the development of an RFP for an impact fee study 
made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, April 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 4 of 4 
 

18. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION: TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON ISSUANCE OF 
DEVELOPMENT AND BUILDING PERMITS:  Attorney Tallant provided a brief description of the 
resolution concerning the temporary moratorium.  Motion to approve the Resolution #R2022-02 as 
presented made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”)       

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  He reported the leak adjustment for last month totaled $1,404.33 and 
can answer any questions on his report provided in the packet. 
 

20. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity through March 31, 2022 were provided in the agenda packet; no questions or comments from 
City Council. 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
 

At 5:48 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential real property 
acquisition was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

At 6:10 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 
 

Motion to resume regular session was made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.         

          ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 6:12 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 2nd day of May 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
   
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  PROCLAMATIONS__________ 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO RECOGNIZE WATER PROFESSIONALS’ APPRECIATION DAY AND THE 53RD ANNUAL 
PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK AND READ PROCLAMATIONS 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• WATER PROFESSIONALS’ APPRECIATION DAY IS MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 
• 53RD ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK IS MAY 1 – 7, 2022 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8     
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:  PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENT, POST 2        _ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
      TO APPOINT JOSH NICHOLS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION, POST 2 TO FILL THE 

VACANT UNEXPIRED TERM THROUGH 12/31/2024 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      

VETTING PROCESS IS COMPLETE 
 

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
         
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:  Donna Blanton, Human Resource Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   MODIFICATION REQUEST FOR IMPROVEMENT TO WINNERS CIRCLE  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
    UPDATE TO BE PROVIDED BY CINDY ELLIOTT 
 

    TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM CINDY ELLIOTT TO MODIFY THE WINNERS CIRCLE TO 
INCLUDE A COVERED PORTICO AND TO IMPROVE THE EXTERIOR FAÇADE OF THE 
MUSEUM ENTRANCE      

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

ITEM WAS TABLED ORIGNALLY FROM THE 02/07/2022  AND 03/21/2022 CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS IN 
ORDER TO ALLOW TIME FOR THE MUSEUM TO RECEIVE AN OPINION FROM AN ENGINEER 
REGARDING THE STABILITY OF THE WINNERS CIRCLE  

 
       

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
  
   
 
 

      
REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 



                              
 

 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT REQUEST – MEMORIAL DAY CAR SHOW, 

MAY 28, 2022 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/02/2022    
 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: GL ACCOUNT #        

  Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget _____ Capital Budget ____Other ________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund _____General Fund 
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO CONSIDER APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL SITE PLAN FOR 
DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
 
 

 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• EVENT TO BE LOCATED AT GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME ON SATURDAY, MAY 
28, 2022– EVENT SETUP AND TEAR DOWN IS FROM 6:30 AM – 7:00 PM 

• PERMIT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FOR THE GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME – 
MOONSHINE FESTIVAL OUTSIDE BAR IN WINNER’S CIRCLE, GREATER ATLANTA 
AUTO AUCTION. 

• REQUEST AND PRESENTATION BY MUSEUM DIRECTOR CINDY ELLIOTT. 
• STATE AND LOCAL PERMIT APPLICATION IS DONE THROUGH THE STATE LICENSING 

PORTAL, SO NO PHYSICAL APPLICATION IS AVAILABLE AT THIS TIME. 
 
 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    11    
 

 

 








	1 05.02.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 04.18.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	Resolution R2022-02_Moratorium on Development and Building Permits.pdf

	8. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATIONS
	8. 2 WATER PROF APP DAY
	8. 3 CLERKS APP WEEK
	9. 1 Executive Summary For PC APPOINTMENT
	10. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MUSEUM UPGRADES
	11. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MEMORIAL DAY CAR SHOW
	11. 2 Local Doc__Redacted
	11. 3 Site Plan
	11. 4 State Portal Submission



